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Annual Report 2018

Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)

MESSAGE

FROM THE CHAIRMAN

This annual report is the first issue since | took up

the position of Chairman of Thailand Convention
and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization) or
TCEB. Following a resolution of the Cabinet led
by Gen. Prayuth Chan-o-cha, | was appointed to
this position on 1 May 2018 to administer the
policy-based development of Thailand’s MICE
industry, which plays a major role in driving the

country’s economy.

The MICE industry is comprised of meetings,
incentives, conventions and exhibitions. It grows
substantially every year with an average of
more than 30 million domestic and international
Thailand,
generating over THB 200,000 million during

travellers — attending events in
Fiscal Year 2018. The economic impact from
MICE events contributes considerably to the
country’s economy, currently worth over THB
251,400 million. This generates THB 177,200
million to the national income, accounting
for 1.1% of Thailand’s GDP contribution. In
addition, the government is able to collect taxes

of THB 23,400 million from the MICE business.

This creates employment opportunities of over
181,000 positions.

As the Thai MICE industry plays a major role
in driving the country’s economy, the directions
and policies to promote and support the MICE
industry must be well formulated. As a result,
TCEB has devised its strategy in accordance with
the 5-year MICE Industry’s Master Plan 2017 —
2021 to support the continuous growth of the
MICE industry.

As the Chairman of TCEB, | work closely with the
TCEB Board of Directors to focus on the policy-
based management and have bolstered effective
implementation emphasising on five main
strategies. They are: 1) To develop new MICE
events and activities that focus on quality and
high performance; 2) To focus on the collaboration
between TCEB and MICE entrepreneurs in an
integrated manner; 3) To boost capacities and
competitiveness of Thai MICE entrepreneurs and
professionals; 4) To capitalise on MICE activities
to create opportunity and support the country’s
target industries in accordance with the Thailand
4.0 policy; and 5) To accelerate development,
create prosperity and distribute knowledge to
provincial areas through MICE cities such as
Pattaya, Phuket, Chiang Mai and Khon Kaen,
cities in the Special Economic Zones and the
Eastern Economic Corridor (EEC) area, as well as
second-tier cities to distribute opportunities and

income to the community economy.

The stellar success of TCEB throughout Fiscal
Year 2018 has enabled Thailand’s MICE industry
to grow more than expected. This can be seen
from the number of international visitors to
MICE events, which rose by 19%, while the

number of domestic visitors grew by over 28%.
The expenditure from both international and
domestic visitors generated revenue of THB

212,924 million to the country’s economy.

This immense success was due mainly to the
continued support from the government in
promoting the MICE business to be a major
tool to drive the Thai economy. Moreover, the
attainment of international standards by MICE
venues including hotels, convention centres
and exhibition halls in Bangkok and MICE
cities; the enhancement of MICE entrepreneurs’
capabilities; and the strong professionalism of
Thai MICE personnel, who possess international
standards of expertise, have all enabled Thailand
to become a world-class MICE destination. The
Thai government also has a policy to promote
the organisation of MICE events in provincial
areas to help distribute income to communities

throughout the country.

Lastly, I would like to express my appreciation
to the public and private sectors, the press and
academic institutes in Thailand and overseas
for their active collaboration for development
of the Thai MICE industry. | would also like to
express my deep gratitude to the TCEB Board
of Directors, TCEB executives and staff for their
great dedication to ensure TCEB continues to
be the major agency driving the Thai MICE
industry to become an effective tool to develop
the country through innovations for sustainable
prosperity and income distribution to every part

of the country.
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In Fiscal Year 2018 or from October 2017 to

2018, Thailand’s

satisfactorily in

MICE

both domestic

September industry
expanded
international markets. Besides,
MICE  organisations

Thailand as a MICE destination, which helps

reinforce the potential of Thailand’s MICE

and many

international selected

industry at the international level.

Thanks to the government’s policy that has
supported the MICE industry and TCEB's strategic
implementation that promoted MICE business
as an efficient tool in driving the country’s
Thailand 34,267,307
domestic and MICE travellers,
generating revenue of THB 212,924 million.
As the President of TCEB, | have managed the
agency in accordance with the government’s
policy and the 5-year Master Plan (2017 - 2021)
of the MICE Industry, together with the vision of

economy, recorded

international

developing TCEB, a major agency that promotes
the Thai MICE industry to be a significant
tool in driving the country’s economy through
innovations in order to distribute wealth to

every sector in a sustainable manner.

MESSAGE

FROM THE PRESIDENT

Year 2018, 1,255,985 international
MICE travellers visited Thailand, a 19.85%

increase over the previous fiscal year. The

In Fiscal

revenue generated from their expenditure was
THB 95,623 million, an increase of 8.10%.
MICE travellers from Asia were the major group
visiting Thailand, led by visitors from China,
India, Malaysia, Singapore, and South Korea.
In addition, the number of international MICE
travellers from Canada, Cambodia, Myanmar,
Vietnam, and New Zealand dramatically
increased. Also, the number of MICE travellers
from CLMV countries, namely Cambodia, Lao
PDR, Myanmar and Vietnam, grew substantially
and took business trips to Thailand more

frequently.

Thailand recorded 33,011,322 domestic MICE
travellers, generating revenue of THB 117,301
million to the economy which grew by 28.89%.
The impressive revenue was attributed to
Thailand’s healthy economy, mainly from strong
growth in exports and tourism. Additionally,
Thailand’s economy expanded 4%, thanks to
the government’s policy of promoting tourism
and meeting organisation in 55 secondary cities
throughout Thailand that helped reinforce the
country’s economy because expenditure from

meeting organisation is 100% tax deductible.

For the MICE industry development, TCEB has
striven to develop and promote the standards
of fully-integrated MICE event organisation
in terms of venue and MICE personnel. It has
of the
MICE Certification Programme and promoted
the Thailand MICE Venue Standard (TMVS) by
evaluating and certifying 125 MICE venues in 21

organised 10 courses International

provinces across the country. It also developed

many cities with MICE potential and MICE cities

by promoting the organisation of MICE events in
the countries of the Greater Mekong Subregion
(GMS) and the Special Economic Zones. In
addition, TCEB developed new MICE products
in MICE cities, together with creating, promoting
and upgrading MICE events using each city’s

unique attractions nationwide.

Thailand has enjoyed its geographical advantage
as a hub of MICE business in this region. It
into ASEAN and
CLMV markets. It is also developing the Eastern

connects and penetrates

Economic Corridor (EEC) project to enhance the
competitiveness of the Thai MICE industry. As a
result, TCEB has drawn up a proactive plan to
develop the Thai MICE industry by joining forces
with all sectors to promote the MICE industry
through MICE activities in response to Thailand
4.0 policy, and leveraging innovations and
advanced technologies in the MICE industry, as
well as expanding MICE activities to provincial
areas to distribute income to the locals. TCEB
expects that in Fiscal Year 2019, Thailand will
be able to attract 35,982,000 MICE travellers,

generating revenue of THB 221,500 million.

On behalf of TCEB, I would like to express my
deep gratitude towards TCEB Chairman, TCEB
Board of Directors and TCEB staff, as well as the
alliances from the public and private sectors for
their continued support and great cooperation in
collectively developing Thailand’s MICE industry
and driving the country’s economy to stability,

prosperity and sustainability.
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Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization) or TCEB
is a government agency under the supervision of the Prime Minister. It was
established by Royal Decree as published in the Royal Thai Government
Gazette on 28 September 2002 (B.E. 2545). TCEB has been in operation

since 2004 with the following objectives:

1) Promote the organisation of meetings, incentives, conventions and
exhibitions, aka MICE events, in Thailand.

2) Encourage the presentation of Thai art and culture in order to preserve
the country’s cultural heritage.

3) Provide knowledge and training for government officers and the
general public in order to raise their skills and expertise in the MICE
& tourism industries to international standards.

4) Serve as an information centre about the Thai MICE industry.

5) Disseminate knowledge to tourism entrepreneurs to create awareness
of the importance of conservation of the environment and natural

resources.

To promote Thailand as a MICE hub or a MICE destination, TCEB is in
charge of development and enhancement of the country’s potential with

the following authority and duties:

1) Formulate policies and measures to promote and support the
organisation of MICE events in Thailand.

2) Promote and publicise the MICE business in Thailand.

3) Represent Thailand in bid proposals to host international MICE events.

4) Serve as the centre for information and advisory services about the
MICE business in Thailand.

5) Support or host seminars or training programmes about the MICE
business in order to develop Thai MICE personnel.

6) Develop and certify MICE-related standards for MICE business
entrepreneurs in Thailand.

7) Serve as a collaboration and facilitation centre for MICE business
entrepreneurs in Thailand.

8) Develop projects essential for MICE event organisation under the
endorsement of the government.

9) Provide support for other agencies in organising MICE events in
Thailand.

10) Carry out related tasks to achieve TCEB’s objectives.
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VISION

“Organisation that promotes MICE

as a tool for economic development through

innovation, to create and distribute sustainable

OUTLOOK wealth across all sectors”
OF THE MICE INDUSTRY’S
MASTER PLAN
2017 - 2021 y/ N
a4
MISSION

e To proactively bring business events to Thailand to generate

economic impacts including income distribution

e To promote business event destinations with product and service
excellence that upholds Thai attributes

e To develop industry capabilities with research, intelligence,
standards, and development of human resources and
entrepreneurs

* To promote leading sustainability practices at global level to

achieve competitive advantages

g

OPERATIONAL
GOALS

¢ To generate income and economic development
¢ To develop the country through innovation

e To distribute wealth across all sectors of society




NwsouuLEUILUN
OAAIKNSSUNISAAUSZYL
A= NUUIAIFUATUIUIBA
U 2560-2564

wielvinsmungnamnssuludliannsafunalnlunstuindeuasugia
vosUszinaldeediuszdnsnm aavy. Fadnvhusuwiungravnssun1sin
Uszguuazauuansdudmumd U wa. 2560-2564 Fadenndesiunseu
gnsmaniend 20 U Aduafuliussmdlnefinnutung sfafa Sedu anamén
Uy iesugnaneiiesdssuna wnuinunAsygiauasdanuwisd adu
i 12 Uszneuduulouneiguia Tumsmusfienisnisduiuauduiadou
guamnsauludues aavu.




Annual Report 2018

Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)

The MICE industry plays a major role in driving
Thailand’s economy through the organisation of
MICE events, which generate a large amount of
revenue from the expenditure of MICE organisers
and travellers. In achieving this, the Thai MICE
industry is able to distribute income throughout
the country, as well as forging business alliances
and boosting the country’s capacities and
competitiveness. To promote Thailand’s MICE
industry, TCEB has devised five strategies in the

MICE industry’s Master Plan as follows:

rd

Strategy: Promote
marketing and images of
Thailand’s MICE industry

and TCEB

Strategic Actions

1. Promote marketing campaigns and enhance
Thailand’s image as an international MICE
destination.

2. Change the perspectives of other organisations
towards TCEB’s role and branding image

3. Publicise the potential and facilities of cities
that are ready to accommodate MICE activities

at both national and international levels.

Strategy: Drive the country’s
economy through the MICE
industry

st

Strategic Actions

1. Maintain and upgrade existing MICE events.

2.Develop new MICE events to support target
industries.

3. Build MICE events according to market demand

and national policy.

Strategy: Strengthen
the MICE industry’s
competitiveness

th

Strategic Actions
1. Upgrade MICE standards for operators and

infrastructure.

2.Develop and promote innovation and
creativity in MICE event design.

3.Enforce standards and relax regulations

related to the MICE industry.
4. Build a collaborative platform with public and

private sector alliances.

nd

Strategy: Distribute
income and stimulate

the provincial economy
through the MICE industry

Strategic Actions

1. Upgrade regional MICE activities to stimulate
the provincial economy.

2. Create MICE activities to decrease the social

inequality in provincial areas.

Strategy: Enhance the
efficiency of TCEB’s
internal operation

th

Strategic Actions

1. Raise the capability of TCEB personnel to
enhance further development of the bureau.

2.Develop and leverage innovations in order
to increase the efficiency of TCEB’s operation
under the principles of good corporate

governance.
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RISK FACTORS
AFFECTING TCEB'’S
OPERATIONS

In Fiscal Year 2018, TCEB promoted risk management and internal control
to be significant mechanisms of TCEB’s management and operations by
improving and raising its standards of risk management. In line with its
strategic plan, TCEB encouraged all staff to control potential damage or
harmful effects within acceptable risk levels, which can be monitored
systematically.

In Fiscal Year 2018, TCEB specified five risk types in its risk management
plan as follows:

1) Lack of efficient internal communication
2) Efficient risk control measures

)

)
3) Control of budget spending
4) Efficient budget management
)

5) Operations in compliance with rules and regulations

TCEB has carefully undertaken its tasks in accordance with the approaches
or measures specified in the risk management plan in order to successfully
reduce the probability of risks and their effects occurring. However, the
efficiency of budget management has been the only risk that TCEB needed

to manage constantly through its internal control process.

For Fiscal Year 2019, TCEB is determined to maintain its risk management
and proactive internal controls. This includes regular reviews of potential
risks to ensure quick response to important situations, especially external
risks that might adversely affect TCEB and the MICE industry. Additionally,
TCEB is developing and enhancing the efficiency of operations of
TCEB executives and staff in order to promote a corporate culture of
engagement in risk management. TCEB has also elevated the standards
of corporate-level and MICE industry-level risk management in order to

boost confidence in Thailand’s MICE business among entrepreneurs.

Jajgnoiuidal
NwanonisatuIIu
JoJ gauu.

TuBeuuszanas we. 2561 aavu. ldndndunisudmsenuidsuaznisavaunely
Tidunaluidlumsuimsianisesdns Tnsensedunnsgiu uazadanisidon
Suvpadmihinssduitatiesdns ieanutemunulenafiagrhliiinaude
menaznansznuienafistuluewan  Tanudssegsduiiaunsosensuvie
muAuwasnsRdeuldegdissuy Inedilsdiinsussaidhmnemuunugnsaans
vesnnnaiduddy

Tnglulsuuszanas we. 2561 aadu. fussiuaudesiiussybilusnunisuims
AMIEYS 31U 5 1589 il

1) Mmsvavszavnmlumsdeasnielusadng

2) Ustavnmaesnnsmsmunudss

3) AnuAuAreInTsidauysEau

4) Usgansamlunisuimsaudszana

5) MaufuRnulviaenadeaundninaeivazsedousieg

il dadu. Idiudunisuimsdanismuuwamaiesnsnsdanisaande i
Aualiluunuuimsanudeseddlndda vlfussiuanundsieg anseiu
Tomauavnansynulaegredivsz@nsam purdeiissdesszansanwlunis
Uimssudszina - fiagdesuimsdanisarundesioiiiosnnssuiunsmuny

melu

ofls Tuleutssanas we. 2562 aauu. assindunisuimseuideauaznis
muguaeludesniuiy wu memumuanudeseduaihaedolituiie
aounsaifiddy  TnsnnsUssdiuarudssniadunmevendinssnusessdns
wazgeamnasulud  wenaniaglfifuusyAvsammsuimsdaniskiunalnns
auveseasrhawilussfuiSnsuazssuUATRNT  ieadenszuiunisuas
Jauusssuesdnslunsiidusnlunisdansmmdss  warensziunsuimsany
dearisluseiuasdng uaznmumesgramnsauludie Sursdwaduarudedy

somsailugsialudlviiugusznaunisaie



In Fiscal Year 2018, the world’s economy grew by 3%, a similar growth to
the previous year, according to a report of the World Economic Situation
and Prospects by the United Nations. This growth was due mainly to the
economic recovery of countries in South and East Asia. In particular, the
massive economic expansion of China and India has greatly influenced
the world’s economy. There was also a gradual economic growth within
the ASEAN countries, which provided a good opportunity for Thailand to
expand its MICE industry into those markets. However, Thailand should
not overlook the world’s changing circumstances: population growth;
climate change; advances in digital technology; increasing cybercrimes,
security and safety in the digital age; conflicts between governments;
terrorism; leadership changes in the global economic powers; and
sustainable development. All were major factors affecting the growth of

the world economy.

For the global MICE industry, the increases in event organisation over the
past decade reflected the industry’s steady growth. According to a survey
of the International Congress and Convention Association (ICCA) in 2017,
the USA, Germany and the UK respectively hosted the largest number of
MICE events. Moreover, the exhibition industry showed increasing growth
of exhibition space sold in many Asia-Pacific countries over the past six
years. In addition, the Global Association of the Exhibition Industry (UFI)
reported that in 2017 the organisation of exhibitions constantly increased.
The countries selling the highest volume of exhibition space were China,

Japan, South Korea respectively.

Trends affecting the global MICE industry included: local community
tourism; culture-related activities; search for new destinations for MICE
events; awareness of impacts on communities; travel for business and
tourism; and combining conference and festival in one event. All these

trends helped to expand Thailand’s MICE industry.
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By capitalising on its great strengths and
MICE

Thailand is now the region’s major MICE

potential  for industry  development,
destination. Since 2004, the revenue generated
from the international MICE industry has steadily
increased, thanks to increasing numbers of MICE
travellers coming to Thailand and spending
more and more per trip. The Thai government
in turn has provided massive support to the MICE
industry to help drive the country’s economy,
which has resulted in extensive development
within the industry, including fully-facilitated and
standardised MICE venues, ranging from hotels to
exhibition and convention centres in Bangkok and
four MICE cities. In addition, growing expertise
among Thai MICE professionals has encouraged
confidence among international MICE organisers
and travellers to select Thailand as a desirable
MICE destination. To ensure that provincial areas
also benefit from the income derived from the
MICE industry, the Thai government has promoted
the organisation of MICE events throughout the

country.

2018, Thailand welcomed
34,267,307 international and domestic MICE
travellers, generating revenue of over THB
212,924 million for the country. Of this total,
1,255,985 international MICE travellers visited
Thailand, generating revenue of THB 95,623

In  Fiscal Year

million from their expenditure. Their average
period of stay was five days and the expenditure
per person per trip was THB 76,135. MICE
travellers from Asia were the major group
visiting Thailand, accounting for 85.77%. The
top 10 countries of MICE visitors were: China
(214,877 visitors); (152,638 visitors);
Malaysia (146,387 visitors); Singapore (84,211
visitors); South Korea (71,141 visitors); Vietham
(55,306 visitors); Lao PDR (55,125 visitors); Japan
(51,361 visitors); Indonesia (51,320 visitors); and
the Philippines (42,398 visitors). Additionally,
the number of international MICE travellers from

India

five countries dramatically increased as follows:
Canada, 309.97% increase; Cambodia, 182.25%;
Myanmar, 137.32%; Vietnam, 109.26%; and New
Zealand, 78.92%. The growth rate was higher

than that of the previous fiscal year. Also, the

number of MICE travellers from CLMV countries,
namely Cambodia, Lao PDR, Myanmar and
Vietnam grew substantially over the previous

fiscal year.

Thailand recorded 33,011,322 domestic MICE
travellers, generating revenue of THB 117,301
million to the economy. The impressive revenue
was attributed to Thailand’s healthy economy,
mainly from strong growth in exports and
tourism. It was anticipated that Thailand’s gross
domestic product (GDP) would grow by 20.5%
compared to the previous fiscal year, resulting
in 4% expansion of Thailand’s economy. This
helped boost confidence among business and
household sectors to spend more money. In
addition, the government’s policy of promoting
tourism and meeting organisation in 55 secondary
cities throughout Thailand helped reinforce the
country’s economy because expenditure from

meeting organisation is 100% tax deductible.

According to the research by Frost & Sullivan
(Thailand) Co., Ltd., the expenditure of MICE
participants and event organisers had a substantial
impact on Thailand’s economy. In Fiscal Year
2018, the total expenditure from MICE events
was over THB 251,400 million. This is expected
to rise to between THB 316,000 — 405,000 million
in Fiscal Year 2022. The economic impact of the
MICE industry in Fiscal Year 2018 was worth
THB 177,200 million, accounting for 1.2% of
Thailand’s GDP contribution. Thus, the financial
contribution of the MICE industry is helping
to drive the country’s economy. In addition,
the MICE industry employs 181,000 personnel
paying taxes of over THB 23,400 million.

Furthermore, TCEB’s MICE development for

Fiscal Year 2019 must be consistent with
Thailand’s development plan for 2015-2020.
This envisages the country achieving stability,
prosperity and sustainability by adhering to the
nation’s Sufficiency Economy Philosophy and
Thailand 4.0 policy in promoting knowledge
and creating innovations and value in order
to transform Thailand into a high income

country. The MICE industry is regarded as one
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of the significant economic foundations of the
Thailand 4.0 model. It also serves as a platform
to exchange knowledge among MICE event
participants, who tap opportunities to improve
their capacity, create innovations and develop
their products and services. The MICE industry
also helps to build networks of companies with
similar fields of interest, which can lead to
mutual collaboration and development in the
future.

As a hub of MICE business in South-East Asia,
Thailand geographically connects many ASEAN
and CLMV countries. It is also developing the
Eastern Economic Corridor (EEC) project to
enhance the competitiveness of the Thai MICE
industry. As a result, TCEB — a government
agency that plays a major role in promoting
business events held in Thailand - strives to
develop the MICE industry with the following

objectives:

e Generation of revenue and economic
development through MICE event organisation:
by attracting MICE events from countries in Asia,
which is considered the main market, to be held
in Thailand, together with events from Europe,
the USA and Oceania regarded as the secondary
markets.

In order to meet the government’s goals
and policy, TCEB provides bid support to
attract national and region-level events to
be held in Thailand, especially events related
to the S-curve industries, which include the
next-generation automotive industry, smart
electronics industry, high-income tourism and
medical tourism industries, advanced agriculture
and biotechnology industries, processed food
industry, robotics for industrial use, aviation
and logistics industries, biofuel and biochemical
industries, comprehensive healthcare industry,
and the digital industry. In addition, TCEB
organises roadshows, familiarisation trips and
marketing promotion activities in Thailand and
other countries, as well as encouraging event
organisation, providing support for hosting new

events and expanding existing MICE events.

TCEB also develops and promotes its Thai MICE
brand image in domestic and international
markets, as well as digital media management

for sales and Thai MICE image promotion.

¢ National development through innovations:
TCEB continuously helps to standardise venues
with 1SO certification and develops MICE
personnel through courses of international MICE
programmes and sustainable MICE development.
TCEB also offers digital services and supports
leverage of digital technology for MICE event
organisation. Moreover, it has set up a MICE one-
stop-service centre and upgrades its capacity to

compete internationally.

e Distributing income and creating prosperity:
TCEB organises marketing promotion activities
and roadshows in CLMV and GMS countries,
in special economic zones (SEZ), and supports
domestic MICE event organisation, especially
in MICE cities, secondary cities, the EEC area
and cities with potential to accommodate MICE
event organisation. With the aims of boosting
the potential of Thailand’s MICE industry and
promoting the country’s image among foreign
investors, TCEB has created a MICE business
database of the country’s three regions to
provide useful information for those interested
in Thailand’s MICE industry.
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BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

Dr. Atchaka Sibunruang

Chairman of The Board of Directors

Age 62

Educational Background:

e PhD in Economics, University of Sussex, United Kingdom, 1984
(Development Economics as the field of specialisation)

e Master of Arts (Economics) University of Sussex, United Kingdom, 1979

e Bachelor of Economics, Chulalongkorn University, Thailand, 1977 First
Class Honours (Fiscal and Monetary Economics)

Work Experiences:

e Minister of Science and Technology

e Minister of Industry

¢ Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Industry

e Director-General, Department of Industrial Promotion, Ministry of
Industry

¢ Deputy Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Industry

e Secretary General, Office of the Board of Investment

e Director-General, Office of Industrial Economics, Ministry of Industry

Current Position:
e Chairman of TCEB'’s Board of Directors
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Ms. Busadee Santipitaks Age 53
Board member
U1J3DUUH Juhiinny g 530
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Educational Background:
e Master of Arts in Law and Diplomacy (M.A.L.D.), The Fletcher School of
Law and Diplomacy, Tufts University, U.S.A.
e Bachelor of Arts (Honours), University of Delhi, India

Work Experiences:

e Ambassador/Permanent Representative, Permanent Mission of Thailand to
ASEAN, Jakarta

e Minister/Deputy Permanent Representative, Permanent Mission of Thailand
to ASEAN, Jakarta

e Deputy Director-General, Department of ASEAN Affairs, Ministry of Foreign
Affairs

e Director, Division I, Department of European Affairs, Ministry of Foreign Affairs

Current Position:
e Director-General, Department of Information, Ministry of Foreign Affairs
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Mrs. Chantira Jimreivat Vivatrat Age 59
Board member
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Educational Background:
¢ Master Degree in International Business, University of South Carolina, USA 1985
e Bachelor Degree in Banking and Finance, Chulalongkorn University,
Thailand 1981

Work Experiences:

e Inspector General, Ministry of Commerce

¢ Deputy Director-General, Department of International Trade Promotion,
Ministry of Commerce

e Director of the Office of Lifestyle Trade Promotion, Department of
International Trade Promotion, Ministry of Commerce

e Director of International Trade Promotion Office, Department of
International Trade Promotion, Ministry of Commerce

e Director Thai Trade Center, Los Angeles, U.S.A.

e Assistant Director Thai Trade Center, Manchester, England

Current Position:
e Director-General, Department of International Trade Promotion (DITP)

Remark: Position’s term expired in Fiscal Year 2018 due to retirement as of 30 September 2018.
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Mr. Vichak Apirugnunchai Age 54
Board member
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Educational Background:
* Master of Public Administration, National Institute of Development
Administration (NIDA)
e Bachelor of Laws, Ramkhamhaeng University

Work Experiences:
e Deputy Director-General, Department of Customs
e Director of Investigation and Suppression Bureau
e Director of Bangkok Port Customs Bureau

Current Position:
e Deputy Director-General acting as Principle Advisor on Duty Collection
Management and Development

UszARnnsAnen:
o USyayln Sguseenaumansumdudin (wu.a.) aardudadieimunudmsenans
o U3gygyes dRmanstiadin (4.0.) unine1ass AL

Usgdnnisvineu:
38905 UANINAANINT (U3 A)
H8138n15d11n (F1wien13 g dinduaiuuasUsuusd NINAanINg

YU

o {g1uen1sdtn (6118013 g9) drdnanuranIngEenIunw nsuAanINg

U

auniailudagiu:
* sesSudnsudaning Snwnslusumisivsnusunsimuwitasu3nsnisiaiung

sreuds=doudszuinu w.A. 2561
dunaudiasumsinus:guuaztinssAMs (9JANSUKIBU)

Mr. Yuthasak Supasorn Age 52
Board member
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Educational Background:
e The doctoral program of the School of Economics (Major: Economics), Keio
University (Japan)
e Graduate School of Economics — Economic Policy, Keio University (Japan)
e Bachelor of Economics (2™ Class Honours) — Quantitative Economics,
Chulalongkorn University

Work Experiences:

e Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, MCOT Public
Company Limited

e Senior Advisor, Regional Development Center, Institute for Good
Governance Promotion Office of the Public Sector Development
Commission

e Director-General, Office of Small and Medium Enterprises Promotion,
Ministry of Industry

e President, National Food Institute, Ministry of Industry

Current Position:
e Governor, Tourism Authority of Thailand
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Ms. Supawan Tanomkieatipume Age 55
Board member
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Educational Background:
¢ Master Degree of Business Administration College of Notre Dame; Belmont
California, U.S.A
e Bachelor of Arts in Business Information System at Assumption Business
Administration College

Work Experiences:

e Chairperson of Marketing Department, Thai Hotels Association (THA)

e Chairperson of Marketing & Public Relations Department, Thai Hotels
Association (THA)

e Vice President, Thai Hotels Association (THA)

e Representative of the Advisor: Asian Market, Tourism Authority of Thailand (TAT)

e Representative of the Senior Advisor: Forecast Model 1* Period, Tourism
Authority of Thailand (TAT)

Current Position:
e President, Thai Hotels Association
e Executive Assistant Manager, The Twin Towers Hotel
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Mrs. Pornthip Hirunkate Age 65
Board member
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Educational Background:
e Certificate Phra Kuman Jesus Vithaya

Work Experiences:
e Board of Directors, Tourism Authority of Thailand (TAT)

Current Position:

¢ Managing Director, Destination Asia (Thailand) Limited

e Vice President, Thailand Incentive and Convention Association (TICA)

e Vice President, Tourism Council of Thailand

e Expert Committee Member of National Tourism Policy of the Office of the
Prime Minister

e Committee Member of Tourism Business and Guides of the Ministry of
Tourism and Sports
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Mr. Talun Theng Age 56
Board member
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Educational Background:
e International Marketing Certificate, Ecole Hotelier de Lausanne,
held at Sukhothai Thammathirat Open University, Thailand
o Effective Hotel Food & Beverage Management Course Certificate,
Ecole Hotelier de Lausanne, held at Sukhothai Thammathirat Open
University, Thailand

Work Experiences:
e General Manager : Operations Department, IMPACT Exhibition Management
Co., Ltd.
e Operation Director, Christchurch Convention Centre, New Zealand

Current Position:
e President, Thai Exhibition Association (TEA)
e Managing Director, Royal Paragon Hall

UszdRnisAnen:
e International Marketing Certificate, Ecole Hotelier de Lausanne, held at Sukhothai
Thamathirat Open University, Thailand
e Effective Hotel Food & Beverage Management Course Certificate, Ecole Hotelier de
Lausanne, held at Sukhothai Thamathirat Open University, Thailand
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Mr. Thongchai Sridama Age 69
Board member
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Educational Background:
¢ Master of Public Administration, National Institute of Development
Administration
e Bachelor of Engineering Program in Civil Engineering, Khon Kaen University

Work Experiences:
¢ Department of Highways, Ministry of Transport
e Chairman of Thailand Privilege Card Company Limited
e Chairman of Thailand Greenhouse Gas Management Organization (Public
Organization)
¢ Board member of the Tourism Authority of Thailand
e Board member of the Sports Authority of Thailand
¢ Board member of Marketing Organization of Farmers

Current Position:
e Board of Directors, Suan Sunandha Rajabhat University
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Mrs. Rutchaneeporn Pookayaporn Age 56
Board member
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Educational Background:
e Honorary Doctor of Philosophy, Mahachulalongkornrajavidyalaya University
e Psy.D. in Management (Organization Management), Alliant International
University, USA
* M.Ed. (School Administration), Mississippi State University, USA
e B.S. (Business Administration), Mississippi State University for Women, USA

Work Experiences:
¢ Sub-Committee for Education Reform and Human Resource Development (2015)
e Sub-Committee for Sports Reform, the national reform (2014-2015)
e Committee Member of Thailand Education Council (2012-2017)
e Senior Consultant to the Minister of the Office of the Prime Minister
(Mr.Prasit Kovilaikool) (2007)

Current Position:
e President, Sripatum University
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Mr. Sugree Sithivanich Age 61
Advisor to the Board
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Educational Background:
e Master of Public Administration Program in Public Administration, National
Institute of Development Administration
e Bachelor of Economics, Thammasat University

Work Experiences:
e Deputy Governor for Marketing Communications, the Tourism Authority of
Thailand
e Executive Director, Advertising and Public Relations Department,
the Tourism Authority of Thailand
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TCEB'S BOARD MEETINGS

IN FISCAL YEAR 2018
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Meeting Attendances of the Board of Directors of TCEB for the Fiscal Year 2018
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. . . . . .
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. . L . . . . February 2018 2/2018 2/27/2018
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. . . . N Mar 1 1 /'
e Director of Domestic MICE Department, Thailand Convention and Exhibition Lla'Ch 203 SHP0L3 O
. . . qUAN 2561 3/2561 3/26/2561
Bureau (Public Organization)
e Director of Government & Corporate Affairs, Thailand Convention and April 2018 4/2018 4/17/2018
s . . . w8 2561 4/2561 4/17/2561
Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization) f 4
e Senior Manager of Meeting & Incentive Department, Thailand Convention May 2018 5/2018 5/31/2018
and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization) TREATITEY 2561 2 B
¢ Marketing Promotion Officer level 5, Tourism Authority of Thailand June 2018 6/2018 6/29/2018
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e President, Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization) Pyl 2561 /2561 7/31/2561
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TCEB'S
SUBCOMMITTEES

THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
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GOVERNMENT COORDINATION ON MICE SERVICE PROVIDERS SUBCOMMITTEE
ANZaYNTINNTTUTEANLIILAIATY IBN58IEANATAININIFIUN1IAN wazu3n1sgmaunssalud

MR. AKAPOL SORASUCHART

ASSISTANT PROFESSOR DR. PONGCHAI ATHIKOMRATTANAKUL

DIRECTOR-GENERAL OF THE DEPARTMENT OF CONSULAR
AFFAIRS OR A REPRESENTATIVE

DIRECTOR-GENERAL OF THE DEPARTMENT OF EXCISE OR A
REPRESENTATIVE

DIRECTOR-GENERAL OF THE DEPARTMENT OF FOREIGN TRADE
OR A REPRESENTATIVE

SECRETARY-GENERAL OF THE OFFICE OF THE NATIONAL
BROADCASTING AND TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION
(NBTC) OR A REPRESENTATIVE

SECRETARY-GENERAL OF THE FOOD AND DRUG
ADMINISTRATION OR A REPRESENTATIVE

SECRETARY-GENERAL OF THE THAI INDUSTRIAL STANDARDS
INSTITUTE OR A REPRESENTATIVE

COMMISSIONER OF THE IMMIGRATION BUREAU OR A
REPRESENTATIVE

GENERAL MANAGER OF SUVARNABHUMI AIRPORT OR A
REPRESENTATIVE

GENERAL MANAGER OF DON MUEANG INTERNATIONAL
AIRPORT OR A REPRESENTATIVE

DIRECTOR OF SUVARNABHUMI AIRPORT CARGO CLEARANCE
CUSTOMS BUREAU OR A REPRESENTATIVE

DIRECTOR OF LAEM CHABANG PORT CUSTOMS BUREAU OR A
REPRESENTATIVE

COMMANDER OF IMMIGRATION DIVISION 2 (SUVARNABHUMI
AIRPORT’S ARRIVAL) OR A REPRESENTATIVE

DIRECTOR-GENERAL OF THE DEPARTMENT OF EMPLOYMENT OR
A REPRESENTATIVE

DIRECTOR-GENERAL OF THE DEPARTMENT OF INDUSTRIAL
WORKS OR A REPRESENTATIVE

GOVERNOR OF THE BANGKOK METROPOLITAN ADMINISTRA-
TION (BMA) OR A REPRESENTATIVE
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Mr. Chiruit Isarangkun na Ayuthaya Age 47
President

Educational Background:

e Master Degree in Public Administration, The America University,
Washington D.C. USA

e Bachelor Degree in Social Sciences, Kasetsart University

Work Experiences:

e Vice President Administration and Strategic Support, Thailand
Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)

Director of Domestic MICE Department, Thailand Convention and
Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)

Director of Government & Corporate Affairs, Thailand Convention and
Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)

Senior Manager of Meeting & Incentive Department, Thailand
Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)

Marketing Promotion Officer level 5, Tourism Authority of Thailand
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Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)

TCEB'S PRESIDENT OFFICE DEPARTMENT / angJiugioiudoanis aadu.

Mr. Chatri Thongnak
Director, Internal Audit Department

Previous Position:

Senior Manager, Law and Good Governance Section
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Ms. Arisara Thanuplang
Expert - Internal Communication
Previous Position:

Senior Manager, Marketing and Corporate Image
Department
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Mr. Puripan Bunnag
Director, The Office of TCEB’s President
Previous Position:

Director, Domestic MICE Department
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Mr. Chartchai Debpang

Expert

Previous Position:

Director, The Office of TCEB's President
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Ms. Parichat Svetasreni

Director, Corporate Communication Department
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Director, Marketing and Corporate Image
Department
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Mrs. Sarita Chintakanond
Expert
Previous Position:

Director, Information Technology Department
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MICE BUSINESS / a1&31ussna

Mrs. Nichapa Yoswee

Senior Vice President, MICE Business
Previous Position:

Director, MICE Capabilities Department
Managing Director, Reed Tradex Co., Ltd.
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Ms. Kanokporn Damrongkul
Director, Exhibition Department

Previous Position:

Senior Manager, Exhibition & Event Department
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Director, Domestic MICE Department
Previous Position:

Director, Administration Department

4 o/ '3
weasylsay grirdyln
{81183 Aneduasunanalulsemne

4
AuvUenaunn:
He1uLN1T EheuIms
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Director, Convention Department
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Senior Manager, Convention Department
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MICE CAPABILITY AND INNOVATION / a1&Jiuwsuuliazudeanssy

Mrs. Supawan Teerarat

Senior Vice President, Business Strategic Development
and Innovation

Previous Position:

Vice President, Strategic and Business Development

Director, Exhibition Department
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Mrs. Jaruwan Suwannasat
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Mrs. Orachorn Wongpan-Ngam

Director, MICE Capability Department
Previous Position:

Senior Manager, MICE Capability Department
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Ms. Wiparat Tharateerapab

Director, Government and Corporate Affairs
Department

Previous Position:

Director, Administrative Department
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Orachat Leingpeboon, Ph.D.

Director, Corporate Strategy Development
Department

Previous Position:

Manager, Electronic Government Policy Section,
Digital Government Development Agency (Public
Organization) (DGA), Ministry of Digital Economy
and Society
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Mrs. Harisuda Boonyawat
Expert — Head of Mega Project Unit
Previous Position:

Senior Manager, Exhibition & Event Department
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Ms. Vichaya Soonthornsaratoon

Vice President - Administration
Work Experience
Director, Convention Department

Director, Meetings Industry Department
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Senior Manager — Accounting & Finance
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Ms. Jittanun Techasarin
Director, Administration Department
Previous Position:

Senior Manager, Convention Department
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OVERSEAS

REPRESENTATIVES

Kumi lkeda
Japan

Business Event Solutions &
Travel Co., Ltd
(For Meeting & Incentive

Industry)

Eric Zhu
China

Arch International Media Ltd.
(For Meeting & Incentive

Industry)
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Nitin Sachdeva
India

Venture Marketing
(For Meeting & Incentive

Industry)

Nicole Tingey

Australia

ClockWise Consulting
(For Meeting & Incentive

Industry)

ganization)
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Stella Tsitsipatis
North Americas

Development Counselor
International (DCI)

(For Meeting & Incentive
Industry)

Daniella Middleton
USA

Development Counsellors
International

(For Convention Industry)
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Charles Leong
Singapore
The Tourism Company Pte. Ltd.

(For Meeting & Incentive
Industry)
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Mark Cochrane

China, Hong Kong,

Macau and Taiwan

Business Strategies Group Ltd.
(For Exhibition Industry)

Margaret Mann

Europe

Hills Balfour Ltd.
(For Meeting & Incentive

Industry)

Evan Li

China, Hong Kong,

Macau and Taiwan

Business Strategies Group Ltd.
(For Exhibition Industry)
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In Fiscal Year 2018, the budget allocation to
TCEB was THB 958.47 million. During the year,
TCEB disbursed THB 889.88 million, 92.84%
of the total, for commitments and subsidies. A
further THB 44.20 million, 4.61% of the total,
was committed for spending during the fiscal
year, leaving a budget balance of THB 24.39

million, 2.55% of total allocation.

During Fiscal Year 2018, TCEB performed its
tasks well to attract 1,255,985 international MICE
travellers to Thailand. This figure was 5.37%
more than the target of 1,192,000 travellers, but
1.55% less than the 1,275,697 travellers who

visited during the previous fiscal year.

However, in terms of revenue generation, the

revenue generated from international MICE

Tutsuszana wa. 2561 dinaum lesusuyseuna
I 958.47 UM seninsUdinauaingne
Hnudtyey1 uazRuaduayudiuiy 889.88 duum
(Sovazy 92.84) ﬁwﬂsxmmﬁ%Qﬂﬁuﬁ’zyzyﬁmu
44.20 1uum (Gegay 4.61) wazdeuussanunLuae
UIY 24.39 auum (Sevay 2.55)

nan1sURURuUsEIdsuUssna wa. 2561 din
U mmimﬁ’wLﬁumu”l,ﬁussqmﬁmﬂmmwé’ﬂﬁ
Auuabiludiudinuiniune  nande  s1wauiin
wunnsgsnanguludainaausemediduau 1,255,985
au wnndhnefidnualived wa. 2561 9
1,192,000 Ay Andudesay 5.37 wianatanUneuan

Teuffiswau 1,275,697 au andudesas 1.55

1 =3 1 v 1 = % £
aghalsinny Tudnwessgld nanide s1eleannidn
95,623
Fuum Yesnidhvunefmvualdi 112,000 a1u

a & v ) Aa o
ym Andudesar 14.62 waranasdnnUnaunisiuiu

a a ' 3 ' a <
Wunigsianguludandrsusenedoidu

travellers was THB 95,623 million compared to
the target of THB 112,000 million, a deficit of
14.62%. This was also 7.35% less than the THB
103,210 million generated during the previous
fiscal year. The majority of MICE travellers in
Although

frequency of travel could be more, lengths of

Fiscal Year 2018 were from Asia.

stay were shorter as there was less intention
to extend their stay after finishing their MICE
business, resulting in less income generated

from each traveller.

For the domestic MICE market, in Fiscal Year
2018 there were 33.01 million domestic MICE
travelers, which was 13.83% more than the
expected number of 29 million travellers.
However, the figure was 6.54% less than the

35.32 million domestic MICE trips during
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the previous fiscal year. The revenue of THB
117,301 million generated from domestic MICE
travellers exceeded the expected target of THB
62,000 million by 89.20%. It was also 28.89%
more than the revenue of THB 91,010 million
earned in Fiscal Year 2017. The large increase
in revenue was due mainly to the change of
event focus, which moved towards trade fairs
of gadgets or products of technology rather
than fairs of consumer products. This helped
attract new-generation visitors, who searched
for information from online media rather than
attending trade fairs. This accounted for the
lower number of visitors to the trade fairs, but
higher expenditure per person due to high-value

products.
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REPORT ON TCEB'S PERFORMANCE

Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau
(Public Organization)

TCEB'’s Performance in Fiscal Year 2018

1. Performance in accordance with the target

1.1 Number of International MICE travellers and revenue

In Fiscal Year 2018, 1,255,985 international MICE travellers visited
Thailand, a 19.85% increase over the previous fiscal year. The revenue
generated from their expenditure was THB 95,623 million, an increase
of 8.10%. However, the expenditure per traveller diminished due mainly
to their shorter than expected period of stay after finishing their MICE
business. International MICE travellers from Asia were the major group

visiting Thailand, accounting for 85.77%.

1.2 Number of Domestic MICE travellers and revenue

In Fiscal Year 2018, Thailand recorded 33,011,322 domestic MICE
travellers, down by 6.53% over the previous fiscal year. Despite the
decreased number of visitors attending trade fairs organised in provincial
areas, the expenditure per visitor per trip was higher than in 2017. In
Fiscal Year 2018, the expenditure per traveller per trip was THB 3,553,
up by 38.73% over the previous year (THB 2,561 per trip). The revenue
generated was THB 117,301 million, an increase of 28.70%. The growth in
revenue was due mainly to Thailand’s healthy economy, particularly from
strong growth in exports and tourism. Above all, it was anticipated that
Thailand’s gross domestic product (GDP) would grow by 20.5% compared
to the previous fiscal year, resulting in 4% expansion of Thailand’s
economy. This helped boost confidence among business and household

sectors to spend more money.
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Fiscal Year 2018

Items 1" quarter 2™ quarter 3" quarter 4™ quarter Total

Number of MICE Travellers
Target 226,700 390,200 267,800 307,300 1,192,000
(per cent) (19.02) (32.73) (22.47) (25.78) (100.00)
Performance 221,840 325,783 363,289 345,073

t,
(per cen) (18.61) (17.33) (34.47) (28.95)
Cumulative 221,840 547,623 910,912 1,255,985
performance (18.61) (45.94) (76.41) (105.37)
(per cent)
Revenue (THB Million)
Target 20,600 37,000 24,700 29,700 112,000
(per cent) (18.39) (33.04) (22.05) (26.52) (100.00)
Performance 17,112 25,742 26,044 26,725
(per cent) (15.27) (22.98) (23.25) (23.86)
Cumulative 17,112 42,854 68,898 95,623
performance (15.27) (38.26) (61.51) (85.37)
(per cent)

Note: 1% quarter: Oct — Dec 2017; 2 quarter: Jan — Mar 2018; 3 quarter: Apr — Jun 2018; 4h quarter: Jul — Sep 2018
Table 1: Target and performance of attracting international MICE travellers and
revenue from their expenditure

Fiscal Year 2018

Items 1% quarter 2" quarter 3 quarter 4™ quarter Total
Number of MICE Travellers
Target 7,250,000 5,800,000 5,800,000 10,150,000 29,000,000
(per cent) (25.00) (20.00) (20.00) (35.00) (100.00)
Performance 8,367,865 7,552,673 8,459,989 8,630,795
(per cent)

(28.85) (26.04) (29.18) (29.76)

Cumulative 8,367,865 15,920,538 24,380,527 33,011,322
performance (28.85) (54.90) (84.08) (113.32)
(per cent)
Revenue (THB Million)
Target 15,500 12,400 12,400 21,700 62,000
(per cent) (25.00) (20.00) (20.00) (35.00) (100.00)
Performance 30,686 25,797 29,398 31,420
(per cent) (49.49) (41.61) (47.42) (50.68)
Cumulative 30,686 56,483 85,881 117,301
performance (49.49) (91.10) (138.52) (189.20)
(per cent)

Table 2: Target and performance of attracting domestic MICE travellers and
revenue from their expenditure
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REPORT ON TCEB'S PERFORMANCE (CONT'D)

Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau
(Public Organization)

Performance in Accordance with Operational
and Budget Expenditure Plans for Fiscal Year 2018

The budget for TCEB’s implementation in line with the operational and
budget expenditure plans for Fiscal Year 2018 was allocated to two plans:

1.Strategic Plan under strategic programme on improving
efficiency and value creation of manufacturing, service,
commerce and investment sectors

The strategic plan focused on proactive marketing, attraction of events,
support of new events -, bid support, promotion of Thailand’s image and
branding as a top MICE destination in Asia, as well as development of
MICE-related standards, innovations and MICE entrepreneurs to enhance
capacities and competitiveness of Thailand’s MICE industry. TCEB
implemented its duties in line with the strategic plan, as follows:

1.1 TCEB supported 231 international meetings and incentive travel
events, attracting 147,535 international participants. As a result, in Fiscal
Year 2018 the number of international participants grew by 26.03%, or
30,476 more attendees than in the previous fiscal year. The major meetings
and incentive travel events were as follows:

1) Herbalife China Extravaganza 2017 (20,000 participants)

2) MAGIC Quick Start Process (8,000 participants)

3) Date with Destiny (QNET Dream International Convention 2018)
(8,000 participants)

4) 2018 Boehringer - Ingelheim China Human Pharma, National
Sales Conference (2,000 participants)

5) 2018 JM Top Incentive Seminar Thailand - Pattaya (JM-JoyMain)
(3,500 participants)

6) Thailand -- Yofoto (China) 2018 Trip to Thailand (4,000
participants)

7) Infinitus (China) Overseas Training 2018 (10,000 participants)

8) Herbalife North Asia Extravaganza 2018 (10,000 participants)

1.2 TCEB endorsed 108 international conventions, attracting 58,755
international attendees, an increase of 61.23% or 22,313 more attendees
than in the previous year. The following were the major international
conventions supported by TCEB:

1) Affiliate World Asia 2017 (2,900 participants)

2) MDRT  Experience and Global
participants)

3) SportAccord Convention 2018 (2,000 participants)

4) Techsauce Global Summit 2018 (1,500 participants)

Conference 2018 (6,270
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1.3 In Fiscal Year 2018, TCEB encouraged the organisation of 37
exhibitions in Thailand, which were classified into 28 upgraded shows and
9 new shows. This number was nearly equal to the number of exhibitions
organised in the previous year, which was 40 events. TCEB also supported
the hosting of some new major events, such as Taiwan Expo in Thailand
2018 jointly organised by public agencies and other organisations

endorsed by international governments.

1.4 TCEB attended 30 bidding sessions to host major events, the same
number as in the previous year. The following were the major bidding
sessions that TCEB joined:

1) World Congress on Human Resources Management 2020, a
world-class convention organised by the World Federation
People Management Association, is held every two years in
different host countries. This convention is aimed at human
resource management and development. Approximately 2,500
participants from many countries are expected to attend,
generating revenue of over THB 149 million. Thailand’s major
rivals include the Philippines, Sri Lanka and Australia.

2) 40" World Universities Debating Championship, which is the
world’s second largest event for youth after the Youth Olympics,
attracts university-level students and teenagers from around the
world to join debates on many issues including the economy,
politics and society. The event is expected to attract more than
2,000 international visitors, generating an expected revenue of
over THB 179 million.

3) The 30" Conference of the Asian Pacific Associations for the Study
of the Liver 2021 (APASL 2021), a major medical conference
about the liver. Doctors, nurses, medical students and researchers
will meet to exchange their knowledge. Thailand was previously
selected as host country for this event in 2011. Approximately
4,000 international participants are expected to attend the
event, which should generate revenue of THB 348 million.

4) International Commission on Occupational Health Congress
(ICOH) 2024 , an
occupational health and diseases, is held every three years.

international academic conference on
The event is likely to attract approximately 3,000 international
participants, generating an expected revenue of over THB 261
million. Major rivals include Canada, India and Morocco.

5) The 12" World Congress of Nephrology 2022, an international
medical conference on kidneys organised by the International
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Society of Nephrology (ISN), will provide a forum for exchanging
knowledge and medical treatment details, as well as the latest
research on treatment of kidney diseases. The event is held
annually in different host countries. Around 2,000 international
participants are expected to attend the event, generating
revenue of over THB 174 million. Major rivals are Malaysia and
China.

6) The Asia Pacific Association for
(APAIE) 2022 Conference & Exhibition, a conference on high-

level educational management, is attended by education

International Education

administrators, university and academic institute executives
from Asia Pacific region. Approximately 2,300 international
participants are expected to join the conference, generating
revenue of THB 200 million. Major rivals include Japan and the
Philippines.

7) World Congress of Psychiatry 2020, the world’s grandest
conference on psychiatry, serves as a platform for exchanging
knowledge among experts from international associations,
organisations and medical institutes of psychiatry and mental
health. About 8,000 international attendees are likely to join the

conference, generating revenue of THB 696 million.

1.5 TCEB promoted marketing campaigns for trade shows in Fiscal 2018
by inviting 37 Thai entrepreneurs to attend IT&CM China 2018 and IMEX
Frankfurt 2018. This concluded with 117 potential business event leads for
Thailand and 933 appointments. However, IMEX America 2018 and IBTM
World 2018 are not included in the performance because of the overlap
between two fiscal years. It is expected that these two events will be
attended by 24 Thai entrepreneurs, generating 48 leads and around 360

appointments.

Remark: TCEB joined six trade shows in Fiscal Year 2017 while joining

four trade shows in Fiscal Year 2018.

1.6 TCEB endorsed marketing promotion by organising roadshows and
sales mission activities, which can be summarised as follows:
1) Meetings and incentive travel
TCEB organised roadshows in six countries, namely China, India,
Malaysia, Singapore, Europe and Australia, attracting 1,008
customers which were classified into: 114 MICE operators, 60
corporates, and 685 MICE & travel agencies. The remaining 149
customers were attracted from the organisation of sales mission
activities in three regions - Asia Pacific (North Asia), Latin

America (Brazil and Argentina) and Mid-west of America.
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2) International conventions
In Fiscal Year 2018, the lower budget allocated to TCEB meant
it attempted to penetrate only into target groups. TCEB attracted
71 customers, classified as: 47 customers - six customers from
road shows in Japan and 41 customers from roadshows in South
Korea. (In Fiscal Year 2017, the roadshows were organised in
four countries, namely South Korea, China and Taiwan, Japan
and UK.), while 24 customers came from sales mission activities
held in two countries, Singapore and Australia. (In Fiscal Year
2017, sales mission activities were held in three areas, namely
Europe, Singapore and Australia.)

3) International exhibitions and events
TCEB organised many activities for international exhibitions and
events which can be divided as follows:

e Eight activities for the sponsorship and networking
platform with the satisfactory outcome of 28 privileges
and 58 appointments

e Three roadshows and focus group activities, resulting in
144 business matching and attracting 226 participants

e Three business forums with 137 attendees

e Eleven one-on-one meetings, resulting in 90 appointments

1.7 In Fiscal Year 2018, TCEB ran marketing and corporate image
promotions as follows:

1) Building awareness through media and various activities held at
five international trade shows, including IMEX AMERICA 2017,
IBTM WORLD 2017, IT&CM China 2018, IMEX Frankfurt 2018,
and IT&CMA/CTW 2018

2) Promoting 17 domestic and international corporate campaigns
and setting up ‘Pop-up Thailand’ exhibition booths at 11 major
events for corporate public relations.

3) Raising awareness and understanding of TCEB's roles, duties and
services through 20 activities as follows:

e Press conference: MICE is not mice

e Press conference: ASEAN MICE Conference 2018

e Press conference: PATA Destination Marketing Forum 2018

e Public Relations activity: Ten ASEAN Ministers of Tourism
bestowed AMVS certificates on MICE entrepreneurs at the
ATF event.

e Public Relations activity: Thailand was selected to be the
host country for MDRT.

¢ Media interview through Post Today newspaper and in
Newsline TV programme on Channel NBT/NBT World

e Press conference: Signing ceremony about the MICE

industry upgrade and promotion with innovations
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between TCEB and the National Innovation Agency (Public
Organization) or NIA

e Press conference: Global MICE professionals’ opinion
survey on Thailand’s MICE industry

e Press conference: Thailand MICE Forum 2018, Redefining
Our Industry

e Press conference: TCEB’s Fiscal Year 2019 strategic
marketing plan at IT&CMA 2018

ﬁpe 4" International Conference

1.8 To develop Thailand’s MICE industry, TCEB upgraded Thai

MICE entrepreneurs’ capabilities and competitiveness, enhanced MICE

knowledge among MICE personnel and raised the standard of Thailand’s
MICE venues for sustainable MICE development through the following
activities:

1) Organised 10 courses of the International MICE Certification
Programme, divided into nine courses of the Certified in
Exhibition Management (CEM) and one course of the Certified
Meeting Professionals.

2) Promoted the Thailand MICE Venue Standard (TMVS) by
evaluating and certifying 125 MICE venues in 21 provinces
nationwide. The certified venues are classified as 119 meeting

rooms, four special event venues and two exhibition halls.
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2. Integration Plan under integrated programme on generation
of revenue from tourism and services

2.1 TCEB encouraged sales and marketing promotions in the countries
of the Greater Mekong Subregion (GMS) through the organisation of 17
events, which attracted 8,866 participants. The main events were:
1) International Conference & Celebration, The Success#14,
attracting 1,200 participants
2) Unicity South East Asia Mid-Year Recognition 2018, attracting
1,800 participants.

3) Oranges Vietnam, attracting 2,000 participants

2.2 TCEB endorsed seminar and conference organisation and built
awareness of LIMEC by hosting the 4" Luangprabang-Indochina-
Mawlamyine Economic Corridor (LIMEC) International Conference held on

20-23 June 2018 in Phitsanulok province.

2.3 TCEB ran two sales and marketing campaigns in GMS countries and
special economic zones (SEZ) as follows:

1) Organised a press conference, together with preparing and
producing media for sales and marketing promotion in GMS
countries. The event was held in May 2018.

2) Organised CLMV Familiarisation Trip in Chiang Mai 2018 held
in August 2018 and attended by 14 foreign press members from
CLMV countries.

2.4 TCEB enhanced the potential of Thailand’s MICE destinations and
MICE event organisation by developing MICE products in MICE cities
according to seven themes, TCEB also placed strong emphasis on boosting
marketing and business opportunities for five MICE cities and secondary
cities, including Bangkok, Chiang Mai, Phuket, Khon Kaen and Pattaya in
Chonburi province. In addition, the development and upgrade of event
organisation in MICE cities was highlighted. For example, TCEB studied
each city profile to find out its outstanding aspects or strengths and
promoted those strengths as the city’s unique attractions or developed
and upgraded secondary cities with marketing potential to accommodate
MICE event organisation. There were five target MICE events as follows:

1) Colours of Doi Tung held in Chiang Rai province between 2
December 2017 - 28 January 2018

2) Chiang Mai Blooms held in Chiang Mai province throughout
February 2018

3) GMS Fabric Expo 2018 organised in Udon Thani province on 28
February — 4 March 2018

4) Lanna Expo 2018 organised in Chiang Mai province on 22 June
- 1July 2018

5) Chiang Rai Coffee and Tea Festival held on 22-25 August 2018
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FINANCIAL REPORT IN FISCAL YEAR 2018

To the Board of Directors of
Thailand Convention and Exhibition
Bureau (Public Organization)

Independent Auditor's Report

My opinion
In my opinion, the financial statements of
and Exhibition

(Public Organization) (“TCEB”) present fairly,

Thailand Convention Bureau
in all material respects, the financial position of
TCEB as at 30 September 2018, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year
then ended
Accounting Standards and Policies issued by the

in accordance with Public Sector
Ministry of Finance.

What I have audited

TCEB’s financial statements comprise:

e the statement of financial position as at 30
September 2018;

e the statement of financial performance for the
year then ended;

e the statement of changes in net assets for the
year then ended;

e the statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

o the notes to the financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Basis for opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with Thai
Standards on Auditing (TSAs). My responsibilities
under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of my report. | am
independent of TCEB in accordance with the
Federation of Accounting Professions under the
Royal Patronage of his Majesty the King’s Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to my audit of the financial statements, and |
have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. | believe that
the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Responsibilities of management for the
financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with Public Sector Accounting
Standards and Policies issued by the Ministry
of Finance, and for such internal control as
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management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management
is responsible for assessing TCEB’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate TCEB or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with TSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with TSAs, |
exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. |
also:

of material

the risks

misstatement of the financial statements, whether

e ldentify and assess

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control
the audit
audit procedures that are appropriate in the

relevant to in order to design

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing

an opinion on the effectiveness of TCEB'’s internal
control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
TCEB’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
my auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause TCEB to cease to continue
as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with management regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that I identify during my audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers ABAS Ltd.

Vichien Khingmontri
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 3977
Bangkok

25 February 2019
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Annual Report 2018
Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)

Statement of Financial Position

Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)
As at 30 September 2018

Notes
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 613,922,030 544,264,509
Short-term investments 4 124,084,566 128,056,694
Account receivables 5 540,983 927,613
Other current assets 6 17,594,438 13,229,670
Total current assets 756,142,017 686,478,486
Non-current assets
Equipment, net 7 22,700,730 28,257,432
Intangible assets, net 8 24,495,054 30,420,002
Deposits 9 5,406,740 5,406,740
Total non-current assets 52,602,524 64,084,174
Total assets 808,744,541 750,562,660

Pt Froe""

Mr. Chiruit Isarangkun Na Ayuthaya

President, Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)

The notes to the financial statements on pages 63 to 75 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Annual Report 2018

Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)

Statement of Financial Position (Cont'd)

Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)
As at 30 September 2018

Notes

Liabilities

Account payables 10 89,656,730 95,661,227
Retentions 11 12,237,138 11,302,993
Other current liabilities 12 3,949,462 3,721,272
Total current liabilities 105,843,330 110,685,492
Employee benefit obligations 13 23,621,036 20,086,958
Provisions for legal claims 22 29,964,735 28,273,192
Other non-current liabilities 14 5,584,748 5,584,748
Total non-current liabilities 59,170,519 53,944,898

Total liabilities 165,013,849 164,630,390

Net assets
Accumulated surpluses 643,730,692 585,932,270
Total net assets 643,730,692 585,932,270

Pt Froe""

Mr. Chiruit Isarangkun Na Ayuthaya

President, Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)

The notes to the financial statements on pages 63 to 75 are an integral part of these financial statements.

53



sreuds=doudszuinu w.A. 2561
dunaudiasumsinus:guuaztinssAMs (9JANSUKIBU)

JUUaNIFIU=MSIIU (£19)

dinnudanasunmsinuszgunazinssAms (9IAMSUKIBU)
tu SUR 30 Auenau w.A. 2561

W.A. 2561

NUGLIA6) U
wilau
wildumyuiou
il 10 89,656,730 95,661,227
Ruuseiu 11 12,237,138 11,302,993
vilaumudoudy 12 3,949,462 3,721,272
suviiaunyuiFey 105,843,330 110,685,492
nilaulaimsuden
nszEniunayselevininm 13 23,621,036 20,086,958
Uismmﬂwwﬁﬁuﬂﬁﬁaﬁmmaﬂgwma 22 29,964,735 28,273,192
Mﬁﬁuhjmuﬁau?}u 14 5,584,748 5,584,748
samiiaulinyuiou 59,170,519 53,944,898
yuniiau 165,013,849 164,630,390
Aunndans
elegandralideavan 643,730,692 585,932,270
FAUNTNEGNT 643,730,692 585,932,270

/Om/wf—#“’/

WLIINE BATINT 04 DETEN
MWeN1s AnudeasINITInUTEYILaYIngIANS (83AN1TUMYL)

3

it
Y

wneweUszneusunsiulunth 64 8 76 Wudnmiliwessunisiuil

54



Annual Report 2018
Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)

Statement of Financial Performance

Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)
For the year ended 30 September 2018

Notes
Revenues from operations
Revenues from the government
Government budget appropriations 958,468,200 992,332,700
Total revenues from the government 958,468,200 992,332,700
Revenues from other sources
Income from organizing training and seminars 1,307,010 1,645,795
Income from registration fees for exhibition participation 15 8,178,644 8,619,370
Interest income from deposits at financial institutions 6,046,731 6,525,924
Other income 525,890 217,871
Total revenues from other sources 16,058,275 17,008,960
Total revenues from operations 974,526,475 1,009,341,660
Operating expenses
Personnel expenses 16 156,249,187 163,470,720
Administrative expenses 17 190,086,158 170,892,250
Marketing and promotion expenses 18 356,242,770 481,231,704
Grants 19 196,119,178 235,870,172
Depreciation and amortisation 7 ua:= 8 18,310,982 22,292,303
Total operating expenses 917,008,275 1,073,757,149
Revenues over (under) operating expenses 57,518,200 (64,415,489)
Non-operating income (expense) 20 280,222 250,463
Revenues over (under) expenses for the year 57,798,422 (64,165,026)

W’ '

Mr. Chiruit Isarangkun Na Ayuthaya

President, Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)

The notes to the financial statements on pages 63 to 75 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Annual Report 2018

Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)

Statement of Changes in net assets

Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)
For the year ended 30 September 2018

Accumulated

surpluses
Baht

Opening balance as at 1 October 2016 650,097,296
Revenues under expenses for the year (64,165,026)
Closing balance as at 30 September 2017 585,932,270
Opening balance as at 1 October 2017 585,932,270
Revenues over expenses for the year 57,798,422

Closing balance as at 30 September 2018 643,730,692

@W’ ‘

Mr. Chiruit Isarangkun Na Ayuthaya

President, Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)

The notes to the financial statements on pages 63 to 75 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Annual Report 2018
Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)

Statement of Cash flows

Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)
For the year ended 30 September 2018

2018

Notes Baht
Cash flows from operating activities:
Revenues over (under) expenses for the year 57,798,422 (64,165,026)
Adjustments to net cash from operating activities
Depreciation and amortisation 7,8 18,310,982 22,292,303
Loss (gain) on foreign exchange translation 112,268 (11,577)
Reversal of provisions for legal claims - (27,467,123)
Interest income (5,984,310) (6,525,924)
Revenues over (under) expenses before changes in
operating assets and liabilities: 70,237,362 (75,877,347)
(Increase) / decrease in operating assets
Account receivables 449,052 334,672
Other current assets (4,364,769) 1,014,288
Increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities
Account payables (5,583,959) 25,639,022
Retentions 934,144 (2,472,511)
Other current liabilities 228,191 (727,923)
Employee benefit obligations 3,534,078 6,646,942
Provisions for legal claims 1,691,543 1,691,543
Other non-current liabilities - (2,086,500)
Cash generated from (used in) operations 67,125,642 (45,837,814)
Interest received 5,921,888 6,526,355

Net cash generated from (used in) operating act 73,047,530 (39,311,459)

W’ '

Mr. Chiruit Isarangkun Na Ayuthaya

President, Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)

The notes to the financial statements on pages 63 to 75 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Annual Report 2018
Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)

Statement of Cash flows (Cont'd)

Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)
For the year ended 30 September 2018

Notes

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchase of short-term investments (75,597,269) (98,184,284)
Proceeds from redemption of short-term investments 79,569,396 91,225,378
Purchase of equipment (2,695,464) (5,641,187)
Purchase of intangible assets 8 (4,663,625) (10,693,002)
Net cash used in investing activities (3,386,962) (23,293,095)
Cash flows from financing activities - -
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 69,660,568 (62,604,554)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 544,264,509 606,865,311
Exchange gain (loss) on cash and cash equivalents (3,047) 3,752

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 613,922,030 544,264,509

Supplemental cash flow information
Non-cash transaction:

Purchase of equipment on payable - 529,757

W’ '

Mr. Chiruit Isarangkun Na Ayuthaya

President, Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)

The notes to the financial statements on pages 63 to 75 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Annual Report 2018

Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)

Notes to the Financial Statements

Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization)
For the year ended 30 September 2018

1. General information

Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization) (“TCEB”)
was established according to the Royal Decree for the Establishment of
Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization) B.E.
2545, which was announced in the Government Gazette on 27 September
2002. TCEB's objectives are:

a.To promote the organizing of meetings, incentive travel and exhibitions
in Thailand.

b.To support and organize the presentation of Thai art and culture for the
purpose of preservation.

c.To provide technical know-how and training to government officials
and the public in order to gain skills that are equivalent to international
standards of the tourism industry.

d.To be an information centre for international meetings, conventions and
exhibitions.

e. To provide knowledge for the operators of tourism business to understand

the need for preservation of environments and natural resources.

The operations to achieve the above-mentioned objectives are carried
out with targets to enhance the further development and expansion of
Thailand as a centre for international meetings, incentive travel and

international exhibitions.

TCEB is located at Siam Piwat Tower Building, 25" and 26™ Floors, Units
A2, B1, B2, 989 Rama 1 Road, Pathumwan, Bangkok 10330.

The financial statements have been approved by TCEB’s Board of Directors
on 25 February 2019.

2. Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the

financial statements are set out below:
2.1 Basis of preparation
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Public

Sector Accounting Standards and Policies issued by the Ministry of Finance.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost

convention.

63

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the accounting policies. The actual

results may differ from those estimates.

An English version of the financial statements has been prepared from the
statutory financial statements that are in the Thai language. In the event
of a conflict or a difference in interpretation between the two languages,

the Thai language statutory financial statements shall prevail.

2.2 New public sector accounting standards
1) 1)
periods beginning on or after 1 October 2017.

Public sector accounting standard which is effective for the

Public Sector Accounting Standard no.17 Property,Plant and Equipment
TCEB’s management has determined and concluded that this public sector
accounting standard has no significant impact to the financial statements

being presented.

2) Public sector accounting standards which are effective for the periods
beginning on or after 1 October 2018 which TCEB has not yet early
adopted before the effective date.

The Ministry of Finance issued the announcement to government units to
prepare financial reporting under the Public Sector Accounting Standards

and Policies B.E. 2561 which are as follows:

Public Sector Accounting Policies and Principles  B.E. 2561

Public Sector Accounting Standard no. 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
Public Sector Accounting Standard no. 3 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors

Public Sector Accounting Standard no. 5 Borrowing costs

Public Sector Accounting Standard no. 12 Inventory
Public Sector Accounting Standard no. 13 Leases
Public Sector Accounting Standard no. 14 Events after the Reporting Period

Public Sector Accounting Standard no. 16 Investment Property

Public Sector Accounting Standard no. 17 Property, Plant and Equipment
Public Sector Accounting Standard no. 31 Intangible Assets

Public Sector Accounting Policy Investments

TCEB’s management has determined and concluded that these public
sector accounting standards will have no significant impact to the financial

statements being presented.
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3) Public sector accounting standard which is effective for the periods
beginning on or after 1 October 2019 which TCEB has not yet early
adopted before the effective date.

Public Sector Accounting Standard no. 9 Revenue from exchange

TCEB’s management has determined and concluded that this new public
sector accounting standard will have no significant impact to the financial

statements being presented.

2.3 Foreign currency translation
Items included in the financial statements are measured using Thai Baht.

The financial statements are presented in Thai Baht.

At the end of each reporting period, foreign currency monetary balances
are translated by using the exchange rate at the closing rate. Monetary
assets denominated in foreign currency are translated to Thai Baht by
using an average bank’s buying rate calculated by Bank of Thailand and
monetary liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated to
Thai Baht by using an average bank’s selling rate calculated by Bank of
Thailand. Non-monetary balances denominated in a foreign currency are

carried at cost using the exchange rate at the date of transaction.

Gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised as non-operating

income or expenses in the statement of financial performance.

2.4 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and deposits held at call with banks
but exclude deposits with banks which are restricted deposits. Cash
equivalents comprise short-term highly liquid investments with maturities

of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

2.5 Short-term investment

Short-term investment is investment intended to be held for less than one
year. It includes fixed deposits with maturities more than three months
to one year, trading securities, available-for-sale securities, general

investments and debt securities with maturities within one year.

2.6 Account receivables

Account receivables are accrued income and advance receivables to staff
for operating purposes. The advance receivables are carried at the original
payment amount and subsequently measured at the remaining amount

after deducting any expenditures incurred in the period.

2.7 Equipment

Equipment is stated at cost less any accumulated depreciation and
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allowance for a decrease in value (if any). Assets are recognised for any

item of Baht 5,000 or more.

Cost of equipment comprises purchase price, import duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes (after deducting trade discounts and rebates)
and any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. These include the estimate of dismantling and
removing costs, and restoring the site in which the asset is located. An
entity incurs such obligation either when the asset is acquired or as a

consequence of having used such asset during a period.

Equipment is depreciated on the straight-line basis over the estimated

useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold improvement 8 - 10 years
Office equipment 10 years
Electronic and radiogram equipment 10 years
Advertising equipment 5 years
Computers 3 years
Household equipment 5 years
Vehicles 5 years

Whenever there is an indication showing a permanent decrease in the
value of a fixed asset; such as evidence of obsolescence or physical
damage of an asset, significant changes in the manner in which an asset is
used or is expected to be used, loss on a decrease in value is recognised in
the statement of financial performance where the carrying amount of the
asset is higher than the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of

an asset is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

2.8 Intangible assets

Computer software is valued at cost less accumulated amortisation. Costs
of computer software comprise costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition and development of computer software, or acquisition costs of
right to use computer software. These costs are amortised on the straight-

line basis over their estimated useful lives of 5 years.

2.9 Leases - where the entity is the lessee

Leases not transferring a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to the statement of financial performance on a straight-line basis

over the period of the lease agreement.

2.10 Employee benefits
Provident fund
TCEB provides a provident fund, a defined contribution plan, which
was held separately from TCEB's assets and managed by the external
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fund manager. Such provident fund is contributed by the employees
and TCEB. Contributions to the provident fund are recognised as
expenses in the statement of financial performance in the period in
which they are incurred.

Post-employment benefits

Provision for employee benefit is estimated following TCEB’s rule
and regulation relating to staff welfare and benefit B.E. 2558. It is
calculated based on the actuarial technique by using a projected unit
credit method.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments
and change in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to the
statement of financial performance in the period in which they arise.

2.11 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when an entity has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events. It is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits resources will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are recognised
based on best estimation of amounts to be settled.

Where it is expected that a provision will be reimbursed, the reimbursement
is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain. The amount recognised for reimbursement should not
exceed the amount of the provision.

2.12 Revenue recognition

Budget from the government is unconditional budget. It is recognised as
income when received.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis.

Other income is recognised on an accrual basis.

2.13 Expenses

Expenses are recognised on an accrual basis when incurred. Grants

are recognised as expenses when they are approved to pay to eligible
receivers and the conditions are complied.

3. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as at 30 September 2018 and 2017 are as
follows:

2018 2017

Baht Baht
Cash 100,000 100,000
Current accounts 2,000 2,000
Savings accounts 414,239,542 344,583,671
Fixed deposit - 3 months 199,580,488 199,578,838
Total cash and cash equivalents 613,922,030 544,264,509

4. Short-term investments

Short-term investments as at 30 September 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

2018 2017
Baht Baht
Fixed deposits - 6 months to 1 year 124,084,566 128,056,694
Total short-term investments 124,084,566 128,056,694

5. Account receivables

Account receivables as at 30 September 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

2018 2017
Baht Baht
Advance receivables 159,386 575,039
Advance receivables for organizing exhibitions - 33,398
Interest receivable 381,597 319,176
Total account receivables 540,983 927,613

6. Other current assets

Other current assets as at 30 September 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

2018 2017

Baht Baht
Prepaid expenses for organizing exhibitions 6,174,027 7,811,095
Other prepaid expenses 10,807,828 4,460,360
Deposit for office decoration 567,233 500,000
Refundable air tickets 45,350 458,215
Total other current assets 17,594,438 13,229,670
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7. Equipment, net

Equipment as at 30 September 2018 and 2017 is as follows:

Leasehold Office Electronic Advertising Computers Household Vehicles Total
improvement equipment and radiogram equipment Baht equipment Baht Baht
Baht Baht equipment Baht Baht
Baht

Cost 36,057,838 8,147,022 11,368,946 778,338 21,931,146 599,969 290,000 79,173,259
Less Accumulated depreciation (22,508,706) (5,122,424) (4,371,698) (667,178) (17,724,189) (231,633) (289,999) (50,915,827)
Net book amount 13,549,132 3,024,598 6,997,248 111,160 4,206,957 368,336 1 28,257,432
Opening net book amount 13,549,132 3,024,598 6,997,248 111,160 4,206,957 368,336 1 28,257,432
Addition 936,250 940,008 - - 262,749 26,700 - 2,165,707
Depreciation charged (3,650,011) (635,386) (990,912) (68,031) (2,282,474) (95,595) - (7,722,409)
Closing net book amount 10,835,371 3,329,220 6,006,336 43,129 2,187,232 299,441 1 22,700,730
Cost 36,994,088 9,087,030 11,368,946 778,338 22,193,895 626,669 290,000 81,338,966
Less Accumulated depreciation (26,158,717) (5,757,810) (5,362,610) (735,209) (20,006,663) (327,228) (289,999) (58,638,236)
Net book amount 10,835,371 3,329,220 6,006,336 43,129 2,187,232 299,441 1 22,700,730
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8. Intangible assets, net 11. Retentions
Intangible assets as at 30 September 2018 and 2017 are as follows: Retentions as at 30 September 2018 and 2017 are as follows:
Computer Computer Total 2018 2017
software software Baht Baht Baht
Baht in progress
Baht Retentions for contracts 10,817,138 11,302,993
Retentions for bidding 1,420,000 -
As at 1 October 2017
Total retentions 12,237,138 11,302,993
Cost 90,881,642 5,662,075 96,543,717
Less Accumulated amortisation (66,123,715) - (66,123,715)
Net book amount 24,757,927 5,662,075 30,420,002

12. Other current liabilities

For the year ended

30 September 2018 Other current liabilities as at 30 September 2018 and 2017 are as
Opening net book amount 24,757,927 5,662,075 30420002 follows:
Addition 581,400 4,082,225 4,663,625
Transfer in / (out) 1,974,150 (1,974,150) - 2018 2017
Baht Baht
Amortisation charged (10,588,573) - (10,588,573)
Closing net book amount 16,724,904 7,770,150 24,495,054 Unearned income - registration fee 1,407,000 1,607,325
Withholding tax payable 1,577,150 1,657,606
As at 30 September 2018 VAT payable 965,312 456,341
Cost 93,437,192 7,770,150 101,207,342
Total other current i 3,949,462 3,721,272
Less Accumulated amortisation (76,712,288) - (76,712,288)
Net book amount 16,724,904 7,770,150 24,495,054

13. Employee benefit obligations

X Movement of employee benefit obligations during the year is as follows
9. Deposits

Deposits as at 30 September 2018 and 2017 are as follows: 2018 2017
Baht Baht
2018 2017
Baht Baht Opening balance 20,086,958 13,440,016
Office rental deposits 5,335,160 5,335,160 Increase during the year 3,534,078 6,646,942
Other deposits 71,580 71,580
Closing balance 23,621,036 20,086,958
Total deposits 5,406,740 5,406,740

14. Other non-current liabilities

10. Account payables
Other non-current liabilities as at 30 September 2018 and 2017 are as

Account payables as at 30 September 2018 and 2017 are as follows: follows:
2018 2017
Baht Baht 2018 2017
Baht Baht
Local payables 82,178,870 88,223,703
Overseas payables 3,833,264 4,114,798 Provisions for decommissioning cost 4,494,000 4,494,000
Accrued expenses 3,644,596 3,322,726 Retentions for contracts 1,090,748 1,090,748

Total account payables 89,656,730 95,661,227 Total other non-current liabilities 5,584,748
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15. Income from registration fees for exhibition participation

Income from registration fees for exhibition participation represents
registration fees collected from private Thai entrepreneurs operating in
the MICE industry for the participation in Trade and Road Shows activities
with TCEB relating to sales promotions and business negotiations between
entrepreneurs and visitors. Income from registration fees for exhibition
participation is as follows:

2018 2017
Baht Baht
Income from registration fees for exhibition 8,178,644 8,619,370
participation
Total 8,178,644 8,619,370

16. Personnel expenses

Personnel expenses for the year ended 30 September 2018 and 2017 are

as follows:
2018 2017
Baht Baht
Salaries 116,361,717 115,042,267
Bonus 8,320,630 11,711,114
Provident fund contribution expenses 7,666,092 7,469,016
Staff welfare 20,366,670 22,601,381
Post-employment benefits 3,534,078 6,646,942
Total personnel expenses 156,249,187 163,470,720
17. Administrative expenses
Administrative expenses for the year ended 30 September 2018 and
2017 are as follows:
2018 2017
Baht Baht
Training expenses 19,408,760 26,899,911
Travelling expenses 44,232,426 43,132,937
Rental expenses 27,404,665 28,867,033
Utility expenses 4,385,742 5,427,572
Meeting expenses 3,542,750 3,255,000
Remuneration to external parties 37,577,196 38,802,803
Other service fees 37,625,188 32,762,266
Reserve for loss from legal claims 1,691,543 1,691,543
Reversal of provisions for legal claims - (27,467,123)
Organizing exhibition expenses 6,111,570 6,907,579
Other expenses 8,106,318 10,612,729

190,086,158 170,892,250

Total administrative expenses
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18. Marketing and promotion expenses

Marketing and promotion expenses for the year ended 30 September
2018 and 2017 are as follows:

2018 2017

Baht Baht
Marketing supplies 4,079,620 12,017,472
Public relation expenses 105,665,697 148,795,160
Booth expenses 15,770,758 20,021,617
Area and equipment rental 34,968,230 47,620,042
Marketing and research expenses 72,737,149 49,911,815
Promotion expenses 123,021,316 202,865,598
Total marketing and promotion expenses 356,242,770 481,231,704

19. Grants

Grants for the year ended 30 September 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

2018 2017

Baht Baht
Grants - Non-profit private organization 45,913,416 61,875,388
Grants - Overseas private organization 54,326,861 37,703,403
Grants - Thai private organization 82,665,438 122,553,621
Grants - Government bureau 13,213,463 13,737,760
Total grants 196,119,178 235,870,172

20. Non-operating income (expense)

Non-operating income (expense) for the year ended 30 September 2018

and 2017 is as follows:

2018 2017
Baht Baht
Gain on foreign exchange translation 280,222 250,463
Total non-operating income (expense) 280,222 250,463
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21. Commitments

TCEB entered into lease and service agreements for office space at Siam

Piwat Tower and entered into operating service agreements. The future

aggregate minimum payments are as follows:

2018 2017
Baht Baht
Less than 1 year 174,399,269 108,784,646
Over 1 year but less than 5 years 10,670,320
Total commitments 174,399,269 119,454,966

6.75 million with interest 7.5% per annum within 60 days from final
judgement date. However, TCEB appealed the judgement on 9 January
2015. The lawsuit is currently under the consideration of the Supreme

Administrative Court.

The outcome has been considered and reviewed by the management.
It is probable that TCEB may lose these cases. TCEB already recorded
liabilities of Baht 9.62 million in the financial statements, therefore,
TCEB recognised provisions for legal claims for principal of Baht 15.42
million and accumulated interest up to present of Baht 14.54 million,
totalling Baht 29.96 million based on the judgment of the Central
Administrative Court.

22. Lawsuits

As at 30 September 2018, TCEB was sued as defendant in significant

lawsuits as follows:

The lawsuits filed against TCEB for compensation of contractual damages
relate to suspensions of payment by TCEB to counterparties in the fiscal
year 2007 due to unusual transactions. TCEB submitted related supporting
documents to the Office of the National Anti-Corruption Commission since
4 December 2007. There were 3 lawsuits totalling Baht 50.75 million. The
details of lawsuits are as follows:

1) On 30 April 2008, a private company sued TCEB at the Central
Administrative Court, a lawsuit black case number 1524/2551, for
damages amounting to Baht 22.27 million. On 30 April 2014, the Central
Administrative Court ruled TCEB to pay damages of Baht 3.13 million
with interest 7.5% per annum within 60 days from final judgement date.
However, TCEB appealed the judgement on 8 May 2014. The lawsuit is

currently under the consideration of the Supreme Administrative Court.

2) On 23 February 2010, a private company sued TCEB at the Central
Administrative Court, a lawsuit black case number 318/2553, for
damages amounting to Baht 23.32 million. On 30 August 2013, the
Central Administrative Court ruled TCEB to pay damages of Baht 15.16
million with interest 7.5% per annum from filing date to payment
date. However, TCEB appealed the judgement on 27 September
2013. The lawsuit is currently under the consideration of the Supreme
Administrative Court.

3) On 30 November 2011, a private company sued TCEB at the Central
Administrative Court, a lawsuit black case number 2014/2554, for
damages amounting to Baht 5.16 million. On 11 December 2014,
the Central Administrative Court ruled TCEB to pay damages of Baht
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23. Budgeting report

Budgeting report for the year ended 30 September 2018 and 2017 is as

follows:
2018
Total Reserve PO/Contract Payment Ending
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
Budget plan
Government 958,468,200 958,468,200
grant budget
Total 958,468,200 =
2017
Total Reserve PO/Contract Payment Ending
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
Budget plan
Government 992,332,700 - - 992,332,700
grant budget
Total 992,332,700 -

The amount of payment is budget from the government that TCEB received

and recorded as government budget appropriations in the statement of

financial performance.
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Financial Statement Analysis

The analysis of the strengths of the Statement of Financial Position shows
that total assets of TCEB in 2018 were 643.73 million baht, an increase
of 57.80 million baht or a 10% increase over 2017, because of the rise in
total assets by 58.18 million baht.

77

e Total assets in 2018 were 808.74 million baht, an increase over
750.56 million baht in 2017. Current assets increased by 10% when
compared to the previous year due to the increment in cash, cash
equivalents, from 544.26 million baht in 2017 to 613.92 million baht
in 2018. Other current assets increased from 13.23 million baht in
2017 to 17.59 million baht in 2018. Non-current assets decreased by
18% per the reduction of intangible assets by 19% when compared
to the previous year, or a decrease of 5.92 million baht, the reduction
of equipment by 20% when compared to the previous year, or a

decrease of 5.56 million baht.

Total Liabilities in 2018 were 165.01 million baht, an increase of
0.38 million baht from 164.63 million baht in 2017. Non-current
liabilities increased by 10% when compared to the previous year, or
an increase of 5.23 million baht from 53.94 million baht in 2017 to
59.17 million baht in 2018. This represented the increment in post-
employment benefits obligations by 18% when compared to the
previous year, or an increase of 3.53 million baht, and the increment
in provisions for legal claims by 6% or an increase of 1.69 million
baht. Current liabilities decreased by 4.84 million baht from 110.68
million baht in 2017 to 105.84 million baht in 2018, a decrease of 4%.
This represented the reduction of accounts payable by 6.00 million
baht from 96.66 million baht in 2017 to 89.66 million baht in 2018,

a decrease of 6%.

Statement of Financial Performance in 2018 recorded the total revenues
from operations at 974.53 million baht, total operating expenses at 917.01
million baht, and non-operating income at 0.28 million baht. The revenues
over expenses in 2018 were 57.80 million baht, an increase from 2017 -
which was recorded at 64.16 million baht — to 121.96 million baht.

e Total revenues from operations decreased by 3% or a decrease of
34.82 million baht from 1,009.34 million baht in 2017 to 974.53
million baht in 2018 because of the 3% reduction of Government
budget appropriations from 992.33 million baht to 958.47 million
baht. The income from registration fees for exhibition participation
reduced by 5% from 8.62 million baht to 8.18 million baht, the
interest income from deposits at financial institutions reduced by 7%
from 6.53 million baht to 6.05 million baht, and the income from
registration fees for seminar participation decreased by 21% from
1.65 million baht to 1.31 million baht. Nevertheless, the other income
increased by 141% from 0.22 million baht to 0.53 million baht.

Total operating expenses in 2018 decreased by 15% when compared
to the previous year, or a decrease from 1,073.76 million baht to
917.01 million baht. This was because of the reduction of marketing
and promotion expenses, decreased by 26% or 124.99 million
baht, grants decreased by 17% or 39.75 million baht, personnel
expenses decreased by 4% or 7.22 million baht and depreciation and
amortisation decreased by 18% or 3.98 million baht when compared
to the previous year. Nevertheless, administrative expenses increased

by 11% or 19.19 million baht when compared to the previous year.
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OF THE TCEB AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee, which was appointed by the Board of Directors of TCEB, has the complete qualifications in accordance with the Cabinet’s
resolutions and the Regulations of the Board of Directors of TCEB on Audit Committee and Internal Audit Department of Thailand Convention and
Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization), B.E. 2561 (2018), namely:

1. Mr. Thongchai Sridama Chairman
2. Ms. Supawan Tanomkieatipume Committee
3. Assistant Professor Sopapan Amatadecha Committee
4. Mr. Napong Sirikantayakul Committee
5. Mrs. Jariya Muangkaew Committee
6. Assistant Professor Dr. Nipapan Kuwisetsang Committee

The Internal Audit Director was appointed as the Secretary of the Audit Committee.

Through the good collaboration with TCEB’s executives and employees, as well as internal auditors and auditors, the Audit Committee has performed
its duty and scope of responsibility independently in compliance with the Audit Committee Charter to ensure that TCEB has operated with transparency
and integrity, and complied with good corporate governance practices.

In Fiscal Year 2018, the Audit Committee held a total of 10 meetings. The meetings by agendas were held with TCEB’s executives, internal auditors and
auditors to exchange information and make recommendations. The Audit Committee reported the performance to the Board of Directors of TCEB on a
quarterly basis. The key performances can be summarised as follows:

1. Financial reports and accounting verification: The Audit Committee verified the annual financial statements for the fiscal year ended 30 September
2017 to ensure that the financial reports of TCEB were accurate and in accordance with the regulations of financial law and verified accounting
standards, as well as the adequacy and reliability of disclosure of TCEB’s information. The Audit Committee held a meeting with the auditors to
acknowledge the main points from the financial reports and accounting verification. Recommendations were made for the auditors to report the results
from the verification that had been approved by TCEB.

2. Verification of adequacy of the internal control system: In accordance with the State Audit Commission’s Regulations, the Audit Committee verified
the annual report of internal control and the quarterly report of internal control assessment to ensure the adequacy and effectiveness of TCEB’s internal
control system, together with covering significant risk factors and setting up an efficient risk management plan and guidelines which must be in line with
the internal control standards. The Audit Committee also considered the internal control system reported by the internal auditors and acknowledged
the results of follow-up and modifications in line with the recommendations to ensure that TCEB was able to tackle problems in a timely manner.

3. Verification of performance in compliance with law, rules, regulations, the Cabinet’s resolutions, announcement and orders related to the operations:

The Audit Committee verified TCEB’s operations, which are required to comply with the Government Procurement and Supplies Management Act B.E.
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2560 and the Regulations of the Ministry of Finance on Government Procurement and Supplies Management B.E. 2560, and made recommendations
for TCEB to revise the manual on budget disbursement for clarity, as well as the document forms of approval for employees working abroad and work
completion to be more consistent, which could be used by all sections of TCEB. The Audit Committee also made further recommendations for TCEB
to accumulate and upload the results of working abroad on TCEB’s website, enabling the operations of TCEB to be in compliance with the law, the
Cabinet’s resolutions and the regulations.

4. Review of the charter: The Audit Committee reviewed the Audit Committee Charter to be in line with the Regulations of the Board of Directors of
TCEB on Audit Committee and Internal Audit Department of Thailand Convention and Exhibition Bureau (Public Organization), B.E. 2561 (2018), as well
as the scope of responsibility and performance of TCEB. The Audit Committee also reviewed the Internal Audit Charter and the self-evaluation of the
Audit Committee to ensure that the Audit Committee’s operation was in accordance with the scope of responsibility specified in the Audit Committee

Charter and complied with good corporate governance practices in order to maintain an efficient internal control system.

5. Follow-up and supervision of the operations of the Internal Audit Department to be in compliance with the internal audit plan: The Audit
Committee verified and approved the strategic audit plan and the internal audit plan for the Fiscal Year 2019. Recommendations were made for TCEB
to draw up the internal audit plan to be in accordance with TCEB’s strategy and risks, and follow up the improvement of operations in line with the
recommendations of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee also placed importance on the verification of the internal audit report, allocation
of personnel, budget, promotion of training and capability enhancement of internal auditors, as well as follow-up of the operations in line with the
recommendations and the approved internal audit plan so as to develop efficient and effective operations of the Internal Audit Department to meet

international standards.

6. Appointment of auditors and regulation covering the audit remuneration: The Audit Committee proposed to the Board of Directors of TCEB for
consideration of the appointment of the auditors and the audit remuneration for the Fiscal Year 2019.

In summary, the Audit Committee has performed its duty independently in compliance with the charter and has the opinion that TCEB has shown
determination to achieve its goals by implementing its tasks with transparency and verification, and complied with good corporate governance
practices. TCEB has also had the appropriate internal control system and risk management plans to ensure that its operations achieved goals set by
the Board of Directors of TCEB.

(Mr. Thongchai Sridama)
Chairman of the Audit Committee
31 October 2018
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